# GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA Executive Office of the Mayor OFFICE OF VICTIM SERVICES AND JUSTICE GRANTS



## Domestic Violence Transitional Housing Request for Applications (RFA)

#### **IMPORTANT NOTICE**

Application Deadline: <u>5pm EST on November 19, 2018</u> in OVSJG's electronic Grants Management System (eGMS) ZoomGrants™ To access ZoomGrants™ visit <u>http://www.OVSJG.dc.gov</u>

Hard copies of the application will not be accepted

You must have a registered user ID and password to apply in Zoomgrants<sup>™</sup>. For Zoomgrants<sup>™</sup> technical assistance, contact <u>questions@zoomgrants.com</u> or (866)323-5404, 10am− 7pm MT.

### **Table of Contents**

| About the Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants                                | 3  |
|---|----|
| Program Description   | 3  |
| Overview  | 3  |
| Availability of Funds   | 3  |
| Eligible Applicants   | 4  |
| Proposal Instructions   | 4  |
| Applicant Profile   | 4  |
| Abstract  | 4  |
| Project Narrative   | 4  |
| Organization, Experience, and Qualifications of Applicant                             | 5  |
| Performance Measures and Evaluation   | 5  |
| Sustainability Plan   | 5  |
| Corrective Action Plan  | 5  |
| Attachments   | 6  |
| Application Checklist   | 6  |
| General Requirements  | 6  |
| Administrative Requirements   | 6  |
| Audit Requirement   | 7  |
| Internal Revenue Service Requirement  | 7  |
| Disclosure of Legal Proceedings   | 7  |
| Office of Tax and Revenue (OTR) Requirement   | 7  |
| Insurance Requirement   | 8  |
| Additional Requirements   | 8  |
| Additional Information  | 8  |
| Award Notification  | 8  |
| Decision Review Process   | 8  |
| Payments Provisions   | 8  |
| Restrictions on the Use of Funds  | 9  |
| Funding to Faith-based Organizations  | 9  |
| Civil Rights Requirements   | 9  |
| Non-discrimination in Hiring and/or Delivery of Services and Discrimination Reporting | 9  |
| Contingency Clauses   | 10 |
| Monitoring  | 10 |
| Risk Assessment Classification  | 11 |
| Reporting   | 11 |
| Inquiries   | 11 |
| Performance Management  | 11 |
| Review Process  | 11 |
| Tips for Proposal Preparation   | 12 |

#### About the Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants

The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants (OVSJG) mission is to develop, fund, and coordinate programs that improve public safety; enhance the administration of justice; and create systems of care for crime victims, youth, and their families in the District. In order to accomplish its mission, OVSJG coordinates and funds community-based and District agencies who provide services to youth, victims of crime and justice-involved individuals. OVSJG is the State-Administering Agency (SAA)1 responsible for the direction of systemic criminal justice planning, coordination, management, research, training, and technical assistance. OVSJG also provides policy making expertise, advice, and counsel to the Executive Office of the Mayor on the role of victims and offenders in the criminal justice system, and evidence based practices to respond to, intervene in, and prevent violence.

#### **Program Description**

#### Overview

Domestic violence is a leading cause of homelessness in the District of Columbia. Twenty-one percent of Point-in-Time Count respondents reported that their current episode of homelessness is related to domestic violence. Further, a history of domestic violence is extremely common among people experiencing homelessness<sup>1</sup>.

OVSJG's FY2019 budget includes \$2 million specifically for domestic violence transitional housing. Through the agency's <u>FY 2019 Consolidated RFA for Victim Services</u>, \$500,000 of the \$2 million has been awarded.

The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants is seeking applicants to submit proposals to further increase the inventory of domestic violence-specific transitional housing and appropriate, trauma informed supportive services. Transitional housing is defined as the provision of up to two years of subsidized housing and support services per client/family unit.

#### Availability of Funds

The funding period is January 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019. OVSJG anticipates making multiple awards totaling up to \$1,500,000. All grant expenditures must occur within this time frame. Any costs that are incurred either before the start of the project period or after the expiration of the project period are not allowable.

The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants also reserves the right to, without prior notice, reduce or cancel one or more programs listed in this RFA, reject all applications, adjust total funds available, or cancel the RFA in part or whole. Funding levels in the respective program areas and budget amount in the, if awarded, grant, grant agreement, or Memorandum of Understanding are contingent on the continued District funding, and sub-grantee performance. In accordance with applicable sections within the grant award and/or agreement. For grants issued under this RFA, the OVSJG reserves the right to continue funding in FY 2020 if funding is available and grantee performance meets or exceeds the expectations and goals established by the grant.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments, 2018.

#### **Eligible Applicants**

Eligible applicants are limited to: public agencies; private nonprofit organizations; faith-based and community-based organizations.

Applicants may develop collaborations or partnerships to carry out the goals and objectives of the RFA. Partnerships must designate one eligible entity to serve as the fiscal agent; the fiscal agent is an active partner providing grant oversight and accountability. OVSJG will work closely with the awardee that is carrying out the goals and objectives of this RFA.

#### **Proposal Instructions**

All applicants are required to apply by <u>5pm ET on November 19, 2018</u>. Follow the ZoomGrants<sup>™</sup> format https://zoomgrants.com/gprop.asp?donorid=2121&limited=1826

The purpose and content of each section is described below. Applicants should include all information needed to adequately describe their plan. It is important that proposals reflect continuity among the program design, work plan of activities, and that the budget demonstrates the level of effort required for the proposed services.

#### **Applicant Profile**

Each applicant must include all information requested in the Applicant Profile. Applicant Profile must be signed by the authorized official who is a person with the legal authority to sign on behalf of the applicant.

#### **Abstract**

A brief description of the project including goals, population targeted, and number to be served. (300 CHARACTERLIMIT)

#### **Project Narrative**

This section of the application should contain a description of the proposed activities that demonstrates the applicant's understanding of the overall project being requested. (30,000 CHARACTER LIMIT)

The successful applicant will address the following:

- A. Describe the plan for augmenting existing transitional housing units, how units will be identified, and a plan for implementing client placement in transitional housing units.
- B. Method of informing potential beneficiaries of transitional housing resources for which they may be eligible.
- C. The total number of service-enriched transitional housing units to be added by the proposal.
- D. Detailed descriptions of supportive services to be offered.
- E. How the program will follow a trauma informed model.

#### All applicants should use this section to:

- Clearly state the goals, objectives, and activities of the project. These activities must be in alignment with the stated goals, objectives, activities, and deliverables of this solicitation.
- Articulate the strategy for accomplishing each goal and objective including a description of key project phases and milestones, specific tasks, activities, staff responsibilities, interim deliverables, and final products.
- Provide a Project Work Plan and Logic Model that summarizes the proposed activities as separate attachments to the application.
- Identify key partners involved in the project and the tasks they will complete on behalf of the project.

#### Organization, Experience, and Qualifications of Applicant

This section should describe the capability of the applicant to fulfill the requirements of this RFA including:

- Information and evidence regarding the qualifications, experience, expertise, and capability of the applicant to respond to the RFA; and
- Past and present specific experience in successfully planning and implementing a project like that required in this RFA.

#### Performance Measures and Evaluation

- Describe intended performance measures (outputs and outcomes) during the development and implementation phase of the project and during the ongoing operation of the mental health bank. Measures should include client satisfaction and the bank's ability to successfully match clients and providers.
- The evaluation plan should indicate how it relates to the goals and objectives. The expected outcomes should be observable and measurable.
- Evaluation also includes the way the applicant intends to collect the required data and outcome measures for each goal indicated.

#### Sustainability Plan

Sustainability plan describes the prospects for continued funding for the project if grant funds are terminated and explains the efforts that will be made to continue the ideas, methods, techniques and operational aspects of the project if the grant funds are no longer available.

#### Corrective Action Plan

For applicants who received funding in FY18 and are designated as high-risk, describe progress related to the corrective action plan.

#### Attachments

#### • **Project Work Plan** (template provided in Zoomgrants)

Please attach a Project Work Plan that list **all** project goals, objectives, activities, and outcomes, as well as a method of collecting required data measures and performance outcome data. Additionally, an estimation of data measures and performance outcomes should be included.

#### • **Logic Model** (template provided in Zoomgrants)

The Logic Model is a visual diagram that illustrates how your program will work. The logic model should communicate the proposed goals, operations, activities, and outcomes.

#### • **Project Budget** (template provided in Zoomgrants)

The Project Budget Template **must** be used in the preparation of the budget and budget narrative. Please refer to the specific instructions under each budget category in the Project Budget Template for more information on budget requirements.

#### • Memoranda of Understanding and/or Letters of Support

All applications **must** include letters of support or memoranda of understanding from any proposed project partners. MOA/LOS should describe the relationship between the partner and the primary applicants, and the roles and responsibilities of each, including any funding that will be provided. These letters should be representative of a multi-disciplinary support base and demonstrate the need, the intended use and expected results from the use of the grant funds.

#### **Application Checklist**

The following information constitutes a complete response to this RFA and must be submitted before the deadline.

| General Requirements   |                   |
|--|-------------------|
| ☐ Applicant Profile ☐ Abstract ☐ Project Narrative   |                   |
| ☐ Organization, Experience, and Qualifications of Applicant  |                   |
| Performance Measures and Evaluation  |                   |
| ☐ Project Work Plan  |                   |
| Logic Model  |                   |
| Project Budget   |                   |
| Memoranda of Understanding and/or Letters of Support   |                   |
| Administrative Requirements  |                   |
| Audited Financial Statements of the organization's most recent fiscal year. In them may lead to an automatic rejection of the application. | Failure to submit |
| ☐ Disclosure of Legal Proceedings  |                   |
| Statement of Certification   |                   |
| Certification Regarding Lobbying Debarment, Suspension and Drug-Free V   | √orkplace         |
| Standard Assurances  |                   |
| Roster of Board of Directors (if applicable)   |                   |
| Key resumes and job descriptions   |                   |
| Applicable staff license or certification required to perform services   |                   |

#### Audit Requirement

All applicants are required to provide a copy of their most recent and complete set of audited financial statements available for their organization. The most recent and complete set of audited financial statements must be dated within one calendar year from the date of the application. Applicants that received in the past fiscal year more than \$750,000.00 in funding from state and federal entities must also include their Single Audit Report. If audited financial statements have never been prepared due to the size or newness of an organization, the applicant must provide, at a minimum, an Organizational Budget, an Income Statement (or Profit and Loss Statement), and a Balance Sheet certified by an authorized representative of the organization, and any letters, filings, etc. submitted to the IRS within the three (3) years before the date of the grant application. Failure to include them may lead to an automatic rejection of the application. OVSJG also reserves the right to award funds under this RFA and withhold disbursement of funds pending a current audit report.

#### Internal Revenue Service Requirement

All applicants must submit evidence of being a legally-authorized entity (e.g. 501(c)(3) determination letter), a current business license, and any correspondence or other form of communication received from the IRS within three years before submission of the grant application that relates to the applicant's tax status.

This requirement should not be construed to mean that all applicants are required to be a 501(c)(3) entity.

#### Disclosure of Legal Proceedings

All applicants are required to disclose in a signed written statement provided on organizational letterhead, the truth of which is sworn or attested to by the applicant's' authorized official, whether the applicant, or where applicable, that its officers, partners, principals, members, associates or key employees, within the last three (3) years prior to the date of the application, has not:

- 1) Been indicted or had charges brought against them (if still pending) and/or been convicted of:
- (a) Any crime or offense arising directly or indirectly from the conduct of the applicant's organization, or
- (b) Any crime or offense involving financial misconduct or fraud; or
- 2) Been the subject of legal proceedings arising directly from the provision of services by the organization.

If the response is in the affirmative, the applicant shall fully describe any such indictments, charges, convictions, or legal proceedings (and the status and disposition thereof) and surrounding circumstances in writing and provide documentation of the circumstances.

#### Office of Tax and Revenue (OTR) Requirement

All sub-grantees must obtain and submit current year filing certification from the District of Columbia Office of Tax and Revenue (OTR) that the entity has complied with the filing requirements of District of Columbia tax laws, that they are current on all taxes including Unemployment Insurance and Workers' Compensation premiums and that the entity has paid taxes due to the District of Columbia, or is in compliance with any payment agreement with OTR.

#### **Insurance Requirement**

All sub-grantees will be required to provide in writing the name of all of its insurance carriers and the type of insurance provided (e.g., its general liability insurance carrier and automobile insurance carrier, workers' compensation insurance carrier, fidelity bond holder). OVSJG will provide additional guidance on all required documentation at the time of award.

#### **Additional Requirements**

OVSJG reserves the right to require additional certifications and/or information in accordance with applicable federal or District requirements including the OVSJG Grant Management Policies and Procedures Manual and the City-Wide Grants Manual and Sourcebook. OVSJG will provide written notice of any additional requirements at the time of the award.

#### Additional Information

#### **Award Notification**

The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants follows the competitive process for awarding grants in accordance with the OVSJG Grant Management Policies and Procedures Manual (https://ovsjg.dc.gov/page/grant-management-resources-grantees) and the *City-Wide Grants Manual and Sourcebook* (www.opgs.dc.gov). All applications will be considered under the federal and District guidelines that determine allowable expenses and activities. The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants will notify all applicants of the final award decisions within ten working days of the determination. For those applicants receiving funding, this notice will include the amount of funds to be granted, identify any unallowable costs that the application contains, note any reduction in funding from the initial request, and outline the necessary steps the applicant must complete to establish the grant award.

#### **Decision Review Process**

An applicant has ten (10) calendar days from the date the notification letter is sent to request in writing a more elaborate explanation of OVSJG's decision.

The request shall be sent to the following address:

Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants ATTN: FY 2019 Trauma-Informed Services Grant Application Inquiry 441 4th Street, NW, Suite 727N Washington, DC 20001

It may also be submitted via email to: ovsjg@dc.gov. Please refer OVSJG Grant Management Policies and Procedures for complete "Dispute Resolution Policy" guidelines.

#### **Payments Provisions**

The Government of the District of Columbia shall make payments on invoiced amounts in accordance with the terms of the grant agreement, which results from this RFA. Grant funds will be awarded on a cost-reimbursement basis. At any time or times before final payment and three (3) years thereafter, the Government of the District of Columbia may conduct an audit of the sub-grantee's expenditure statements.

#### Restrictions on the Use of Funds

In addition to any specific funding restrictions described in this RFA, all grantees must expend grant funds in accordance with the cost principles delineated by the OVSJG Grant Management Policies and Procedures Manual and the District of Columbia City-Wide Grants Manual and Sourcebook.

#### Funding to Faith-based Organizations

Applicants from faith-based organizations (FBO's) are invited and encouraged to apply for eligible grant activities described in this RFA. Faith-based organizations will be considered for awards on the same basis as other eligible applicants and will be treated on an equal basis with other sub-grantees should they receive an award. No eligible applicant or sub-grantee will be discriminated for or against on the basis of its religious character or affiliation, religious name, or the religious composition of its board of directors or persons working in the organization. However, grant funds may not be used to engage in inherently religious activities, such as proselytizing, scripture study, or worship. Funded FBOs may, of course, engage in religious activities; however, these activities must be separate in time or location from the OVSJG funded program. Moreover, funded FBOs must not compel program beneficiaries to participate in inherently religious activities. Funded faith-based organizations must also not discriminate on the basis of religion in the delivery of services or benefits.

#### **Civil Rights Requirements**

Successful applicants must be able to demonstrate compliance with federal and District Civil Rights requirements. If applicant is selected for a grant award, sub-grantees will be required to post and display the *District of Columbia Equal Employment Opportunity* poster in a conspicuous area accessible to employees; and appoint an Equal Opportunity (EO) Coordinator within the organization who will provide support and oversight to staff and service beneficiaries.

Applicants must agree to comply with the **District of Columbia Language Access Act**. The District's Language Access Program exists to ensure District residents who are limited or non-English proficient are afforded equal access to information and services provided by the District. Residents or visitors who speak little or no English must be offered interpretation services and/or translated documents when obtaining government services, as required by the Language Access Act of 2004. Language access includes access to certified interpreters and translated materials. *All applications should demonstrate a plan to ensure compliance with the District's Language Access Program*.

Applicants must agree to comply with all applicable federal and District civil rights laws and make every effort to provide accessible programming to individuals with limited English proficiency.

Non-discrimination in Hiring and/or Delivery of Services and Discrimination Reporting In accordance with the below listed applicable federal statutes as well as District non-discrimination requirements, grantees agree to not discriminate in their hiring practices and/or provision of services against any and all protected populations. In addition, grantees agree to notify OVSJG within 48 hours of any and all employee or beneficiary formal complaints of discrimination against their organization, and to more generally comply with all civil rights hiring and beneficiary service policies and procedures as identified in the below listed applicable statutes. Applicable statutes may include the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of

1968 (34 U.S.C. §§ 10228(c) and 10221(a)); the Victims of Crime Act (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101-07); the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) of 1994, as amended, 34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13); and the Department of Justice's regulations implementing these civil rights statutes at 28 C.F.R. pt. 35, 42, and 54; and Ex. Order 13279 (Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations).

#### **Contingency Clauses**

- 1) OVSJG reserves the right to make changes to this RFA, based on any clarifications in the regulations, legislative changes, or funding level fluctuations from the Federal and/or District government. Funding for sub-grantees is contingent on continued funding from the grantor.
- 2) This RFA does not commit OVSJG to award grants or sub-grants. OVSJG reserves the right to accept or reject any or all applications. The agency will notify applicants of the rejected proposals. OVSJG may suspend or terminate an outstanding RFA pursuant to its own grant making rule(s) or any applicable federal or District regulation or requirement.
- 3) OVSJG reserves the right to issue addenda and/or amendments subsequent to the RFA process or to rescind the RFA.
- 4) OVSJG shall not be liable for any costs incurred in the preparation of applications in response to RFA. Applicants agree that all costs incurred in developing the application are the applicants' sole responsibility.
- 5) OVSJG may conduct pre-award on-site visits to verify information submitted in the application and to determine if proposed facilities are appropriate for the proposed services.
- 6) OVSJG may require applicants to enter negotiations and submit a price, technical or other revision of their proposal that may result from negotiations.
- 7) If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of the RFA and any federal or District law or regulation, or any ambiguity related thereby, then the provisions of the applicable law or regulation shall control and it shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure compliance.

#### **Monitoring**

The Grant Program Manager will monitor program services and financial administration pursuant to the terms of the grant agreement and will make onsite visits to the grantee's service facilities.

Monitoring efforts are designed to determine the grantee's level of compliance with federal and/or District requirements and identify specifically whether the grantee's operational, financial and management systems and practices are adequate to account for program funds. Failure to be in compliance with requirements may result in payment suspension, payment reduction, or termination of the grant. New grantees and grantees that have a high-risk classification must provide all financial back-up when submitting reimbursements and are also subject to more frequent onsite visits.

#### **Risk Assessment Classification**

If the application is awarded a grant, a risk assessment classification system will be used to assist in determining the level of sub-grantee monitoring to be performed and the frequency thereof. After a grant is awarded, the sub-grantee will receive a risk classification based on past financial and programmatic reporting of the sub-grantee, documentation submitted with the application, and other factors as detailed in the OVSJG Grant Management Policies and Procedures.

#### Reporting

All grantees are required to submit quarterly programmatic reports and financial requests for reimbursement. The programmatic reports must indicate the status of the goals and objectives as determined by the grantee in their application. The grantee should also include any successes or challenges encountered during the report period. The financial reports indicate the status of program spending by category and are submitted along with all receipts, invoices or other documentation of expenditures, as required based on risk status. Both financial and programmatic reports are due no later than the 15th day after the end of the reported quarter. Fourth quarter financial reports will be due by the 10th of October.

Failure to submit complete programmatic reports by the date due will result in withholding of reimbursements, as well as a Notice of Programmatic Delinquency. More than one Notice of Programmatic Delinquency may result in the termination of funding for the fiscal year.

#### **Inquiries**

To ensure fairness and consistency, all questions not addressed in this RFA must be submitted in writing or by e-mail. **All questions must be received by November 5, 2018**. Questions and answers that result in an amendment to the RFA will be posted on the OVSJG website under Current Funding Opportunities (https://ovsjg.dc.gov/page/current-funding) and the Office of Partnerships and Grant Development, District Grants Clearinghouse at: https://www.opgs.dc.gov.

Questions that can be answered by referring to sections of the RFA or that are specific to an applicant may be addressed by sending an email to ovsjg@dc.gov, Attn: FY 2019 **Domestic Violence Transitional Housing RFA**. Oral explanations or instructions given prior to the award of grants will not be binding.

#### Performance Management

All applicants must develop a set of goals, objectives, and activities specific to the application that clearly illustrate how and when the identified services and needs of the target population(s) will be addressed. Goals are generally broad statements that encompass objectives and activities. Proposed objectives must describe a measurable outcome and activities should describe the specifics used to meet objectives. Applications should also include programmatic outcomes, e.g., the desired result of the goals, objectives, and activities, and a description of how the sub-grantee will measure the desired results.

#### **Review Process**

The Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants may use either internal peer reviewers, external peer reviewers, or a combination of both to review the applications under this RFA. An external peer reviewer is an expert in the field of the subject matter of a given solicitation who is

NOT a current District of Columbia government employee. An internal reviewer is an expert in the field of the subject matter of a given solicitation who is a current District of Columbia government employee. Applications will be screened initially to determine whether the applicant meets all eligibility requirements. Only applications submitted by eligible applicants that meet all other requirements (such as timeliness, proper format, and responsiveness to the scope of the RFA) will be evaluated, scored, and rated by a peer review panel. Peer reviewers' ratings and any resulting recommendations are advisory only. In addition to peer review ratings, considerations may include, but are not limited to, underserved populations, strategic priorities, past performance, and available funding.

The final decision on awards rests solely with the Director of the Office of Victim Services and Justice Grants. After reviewing the recommendations of the review panel, information gathered during the internal review, and any other information considered relevant, the Director of OVSJG shall decide which applicants to fund and the amounts to be funded.

#### Tips for Proposal Preparation

OVSJG recognizes the level of time and effort that applicants must put into developing proposals for submission. In order to tailor the application process to be as efficient and expeditious as possible we request that each applicant adhere to the following:

- The Application Profile must be signed by the Authorized Official.
- Round all budget figures to the nearest dollar.
- Use the What an Application Must Include (page 5) checklist to guide the completion of your grant application packet.
- Use the templates provided for the Project Work Plan, Logic Model, and Budget as guides for your application.